
1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



Minutes 04/26/12  Page 1 of 6 

 
1660 S. Stemmons., Suite 250 

Lewisville, Texas 75067 
Ph: (972) 221-4600  Fax: (972) 221-4601 

  
  

Denton County Transportation Authority 
Board of Directors 

Work Session and Board Meeting Minutes 

 
Work Session Minutes 

 
The Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority convened with Chairman 
Charles Emery presiding at 1:35 p.m. April 26, 2012 at 1660 S. Stemmons, Suite 250, 
Lewisville, TX 75067.  A quorum was present. 
 

Attendance 
 
Small Cities DCTA Staff 
Bill Walker James C. Cline, Jr., P.E. 
 Anna Mosqueda, CFO / VP Finance 
Large Cities Dee Leggett, VP Communications and 

Planning 
Richard Huckaby, Denton Jarod Varner VP Transit Operations 
Paul Pomeroy, Highland Village, Treasurer  
Charles Emery, Lewisville, Chairman Madhu Penmetsa, Sr. Accountant 
Daniel Peugh, Corinth Amanda Riddle, Budget Analyst 
Jim Robertson, Flower Mound  (arrived 2:50 p.m.) Kristina Brevard, Marketing Manager 
Doug Peach, Little Elm  (arrived 2:09 p.m.)  
Dave Kovatch, The Colony, Secretary   
 Legal Counsel 
Denton County Unincorporated Pete Smith 
Charles Correll, Vice-Chairman (arrived 2:42 p.m.)  
  
Denton County at Large Others in Attendance 
 Michael Leavitt, City of Highland Village 
Board Members Absent Mark Nelson, City of Denton 
Tom Spencer Kevin Feldt, NCTCOG 
Skip Kalb Tom Shelton, NCTCOG 
Don Hartman  
Thomas Smith  
  
 
 

1. Routine Briefing Items 
a. Financial Reports –  Anna Mosqueda reviewed the following items: 

i. Financial Statement 
ii. Capital Projects Fund 
iii. Sales Tax Report 
iv. Quarterly Investment Report 
v. Procurement Status Report 

 

89



Minutes 04/26/12  Page 2 of 6 

b. Capital Projects Update – Jim Cline presented the Board with information 
on the following items: 

i. GTW Procurement 
ii. Bus Operations and Maintenance Facility (OMF) 
iii. Positive Train Control (PTC) 
iv. A-train Close-out Status 

 
c. Communications and Planning – Dee Leggett provided a briefing on the 

following items:  
i. Safety Program 
ii. Community Promotions 
iii. Triennial Review 

 
d. Transit Operations – Jarod Varner presented information on the following 

items: 
i. Bus Operation 
ii. Rail Operations 

 
2. Presentation / Discussion 

a. Presentation of NCTCOG Innovative Finance Initiative – Kevin Feldt and 
Tom Shelton of North Central Texas Council of Governments made a 
presentation to the Board. 

i. Phase 1 Final Report  
ii. Phase 2 Next Steps 

 
b. Discussion regarding Architecture and Engineering Task Order for 

Community Enhancements – Dee Leggett provided information  
 

c. Discussion regarding Revised Budget / Cash Flow Model – Jim Cline and 
Anna Mosqueda lead a discussion and answered questions. 
 

d. Discussion of Presentation Material for April/May Public Meetings  
i. Proposed Service Enhancements – Jim Cline and Dee Leggett 

provided information and answered questions.  A letter on this topic 
from Board Member Tom Spencer was distributed to all Board 
Members.  (letter attached) 

 
Jarod Varner provided information on Items 2e-h: 
e. Discussion of Rail Maintenance Equipment Purchase 

 
f. Discussion of Capital Budget Amendment for Purchase of Rail 

Maintenance Equipment 
 

g. Discussion of Temporary Maintenance Facility Lease 
 

h. Discussion of City of Denton Solid Waste Facility Lease 
 

3. Discussion of Regular Board Meeting Agenda Items (April 26, 2012) – no 
questions 

 
 

90



Minutes 04/26/12  Page 3 of 6 

4. Executive Session – No Executive Session 
a. As Authorized by Section 551.071(2) of the Texas Government Code, the 

Work Session and Regular Meeting may be Convened into Closed 
Executive Session for the Purpose of Seeking Confidential Legal Advice 
from the General Counsel on any Agenda Item Listed Herein. 
 

5. Reconvene Open Session - none 
a. Reconvene and Take Necessary Action on Items Discussed during 

Executive Session. 
 

6. Discussion of Future Agenda Items – Jim Cline advised the Board of items that 
will be discussed in future meetings. 

a. Denton Hike and Bike Trail Maintenance Interlocal Agreement 
b. Proposed Sales Tax Audit 
c. Board Member Requests - None 

 
7. Adjourn Work Session  4:14 p.m. 

 
 

 
1660 S. Stemmons., Suite 250 

Lewisville, Texas 75067 
 

Denton County Transportation Authority 
Board of Directors 

Work Session and Board Meeting Minutes 
 

Board Meeting Minutes 
 

The Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority convened with Chairman 
Charles Emery presiding at 4:19 p.m. April 26, 2012 at 1660 S. Stemmons, Suite 250, 
Lewisville, TX 75067.  A quorum was present. 
 

Attendance 
 
Small Cities DCTA Staff 
 James C. Cline, Jr., P.E. 
 Anna Mosqueda, CFO / VP Finance 
Large Cities Dee Leggett, VP Communications and 

Planning 
Richard Huckaby, Denton Jarod Varner VP Transit Operations 
Paul Pomeroy, Highland Village, Treasurer  
Charles Emery, Lewisville, Chairman  
Daniel Peugh, Corinth  
Jim Robertson, Flower Mound   Legal Counsel 
Doug Peach, Little Elm   Pete Smith 
Dave Kovatch, The Colony, Secretary   
  
Denton County Unincorporated Others in Attendance 
Charles Correll, Vice-Chairman   
 Mark Nelson, City of Denton 

91



Minutes 04/26/12  Page 4 of 6 

  
Denton County at Large  
  
  
Board Members Absent  
Tom Spencer  
Skip Kalb  
Don Hartman  
Thomas Smith  
Bill Walker  

 
 

CALL TO ORDER – Charles Emery called the meeting to order at 4:19 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO US AND TEXAS FLAGS – Richard Huckaby 
 
INVOCATION – Dave Kovatch 
 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION OF VISITORS - no visitors 
 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 
a. Approval of Minutes – February 2012 
b. Approval of Minutes – March 2012 
c. Acceptance of Financial Reports 
d. Acceptance of Quarterly Investment Reports 
e. Approval of Consent to Assignment of State Legislative Services Contract 
-Motion to approve Consent Agenda items 1a-e made by Richard Huckaby.  
2nd by Doug Peach.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
2. REGULAR AGENDA 

a. Presentation of Texas Comptrollers Leadership Circle – Silver Award 
-Anna Mosqueda explained the significance of this honor recognizing 
transparency in DCTA business practices. 

 
b. Approval of Annual Program of Projects 
-Motion to approve the Annual Program of Projects made by Richard 
Huckaby.  2nd by Paul Pomeroy.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
c. Approval of Updated Rules of Procedure 
-Motion to approve the Updated Rules of Procedure made by Charles Correll, 
2nd by Dave Kovatch.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
d. Approval of Architecture and Engineering Task Order for Community 

Enhancements 
-Motion to approve Architecture and Engineering Task Order for Community 
Enhancements made by Doug Peach.  2nd by Dave Kovatch.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
(Items 2e-f considered together) 

 

92



Minutes 04/26/12  Page 5 of 6 

e. Approval of Capital Budget Amendment for Purchase of Rail Maintenance 
Equipment   

f. Approval of Rail Maintenance Equipment Purchase 
-Motion to approve a Capital Budget Amendment for Purchase of Rail 
Maintenance Equipment and approval of Rail Maintenance Equipment 
Purchase made by Charles Correll.  2nd by Paul Pomeroy.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
g. Approval of Temporary Maintenance Facility Lease 
-Motion to approve Temporary Maintenance Facility Lease made by Jim 
Robertson.  2nd by Dave Kovatch.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
h. Approval of Modification to Access Policy – No action necessary.  

Information to Board regarding compliance issue. 
 

3. CHAIR REPORT – Charles Emery briefed the Board on the following items: 
a. Discussion of Regional Transportation Issues  
b. Discussion Legislative Issues: Local, Regional, Federal 
c. Legislative Committee Report – a meeting date will be set in May 2012 

 
4. PRESIDENT’S REPORT  

a. Review of Board Member E-mail Communications and Public Information 
– Pete Smith provided information to the Board 

b. Update on Status of Texas Woman’s University Agreement Providing 
Denton Connect Services to Students.  - Information Presented by Jim 
Cline 

c. Fare Increases by Regional Partners - Information Presented by Jim Cline 
 

5. REPORT ON ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST - None 
a. Pursuant to Texas Government Section 551.0415 the Board of Directors 

may report on following items:  (1) expression of thanks, congratulations, 
or condolences;  (2) information about holiday schedules; (3) recognition 
of individuals; (4) reminders about upcoming DCTA and Member City 
events; (5) information about community events; and (6) announcements 
involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 

 
6. CONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION  - None 

a. As Authorized by Section 551.071(2) of the Texas Government Code, the 
Work Session and Regular Meeting may be Convened into Closed 
Executive Session for the Purpose of Seeking Confidential Legal Advice 
from the General Counsel on any Agenda Item Listed Herein. 

 
7. RECONVENE OPEN SESSION – not necessary 

a. Reconvene and Take Necessary Action on Items Discussed during 
Executive Session. 

 
8. ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING – 4:42 p.m. 

 
 
 

93



Minutes 04/26/12  Page 6 of 6 

The minutes of the April 26, 2012 meeting of the Board of Directors were passed, and approved 
by a vote on this 24th day of May, 2012. 
 

_____________________________________ 
Charles Emery, Chairman 

 
ATTEST 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Dave Kovatch, Secretary 

94



Letter submitted to the DCTA Board from Board Member Tom Spencer 
April 26, 2012 

Gentleman, 
I’m sorry I am not able to be at the meeting but my wife and I are vacationing with friends. I 
have the following comments that I would like read into the record.  
Tom Spencer 
 
Friday Night Ridership 
I note Friday Night only met the metric of 50% of weekday ridership 7 out of 26 times or 27%, 
during the period. That is far short of our agreed requirement for performance. Looking back at 
my records, from 7/1 to present it appears that it only exceeded the metric 8‐9 times out of 40 
nights, 22.5%. The pilot project for Friday night service has failed. Not because the direction of 
the ridership was wrong, which it was, but because the number of riders was too low and 
discretionary in nature.  If we doubled the number of riders we still would not have met our 
defined criteria.  
Staff seems to hope that if we “tweak” Friday night we might create some “descretionary 
travelers and in the long term build DCTA’s regular ridership base.” I remind you of the 
statement that “nobody ever built a successful commuter rails system catering to discretionary 
ridership.” That is true because by their discretionary nature they are not a reliable component 
of the ridership base. I would posit that we would do better by spreading the trips at the end of 
peak on all 5 days of the week. If we can fill a day’s schedule on a reasonable headway and 
extend the peak each weekday we will see an increase in ridership base that will be 
“significant,” and not just a marginal increase of “maybe” riders. We need to change our priories 
back to creating a reliable, timely, and financially responsible agency. We have real financial 
challenges and we cannot continue to subsidize the most expensive service we offer to the 
fewest people.  
 
I think the board should also know the following information.   
The average subsidy per rider from January 1, 20012 to March 31, 2012 for each of the following 
transportation services we provide. I think this information gives us one of several and the best 
indicator of the efficiency of our use of our money, like it or not. I would like this information 
presented to the board. 

a. Connect 
b. Access 
c. Connect RSVP 
d. A‐train 
e. Friday night service 

 
 

  Shunting  
The capital cost of the Swingmaster Corporation’s D‐925 Railbrush is supposed at $50,000. What 
is the operational cost for the process? What is the total per year? We need to get 
everyone from Stadler on down to sit down and find a solution to this. We may need to 
purchase this brush to get the new cars up and in service, but that is not a solution, only a Band‐
Aid an expensive one at that. We need to correct this problem before we have a viable regional 
and national vehicle. The shunt problem is an operational one, not a crash worthiness issue.    
The AVT technology works and will be approved at some point. I think everyone benefits if we 
get to put the Stadler in service while we are running the RDC’s. This especially applies to 
Stadler.     

95



96



 

Office of the Chairman 
 Denton County Transportation Authority 
 
 

 Proclamation 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Denton County Transportation Authority is a leader in 

supporting highway-rail grade crossing and pedestrian safety programs; and 

 

WHEREAS, An incident occurs on railroad property in the United States 

every 180 minutes; and 

 

WHEREAS, 202 highway-grade crossing crashes during the year of 2011 

resulted in 16 persons killed and another 81 injured in the state of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, 65 pedestrian/railroad trespass incidents on railroad property 

during the year of 2011 resulted in 33 persons killed and another 32 injured in the 

state of Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, highway-grade crossing crashes are more severe than 

highway collisions and are more likely to result in death and injury; and 

 

WHEREAS, there are over 14,168 at-grade public rail crossings located 

within Texas and 151 are located within the county of Denton, Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, collisions between trains and motor vehicles or pedestrians 

could have been prevented by increased public awareness of the dangers at 

crossings and around railroad property and the appropriate safety laws, and 

 

97



WHEREAS, Denton County Transportation Authority works in cooperation 

with Operation Lifesaver, Inc., the foremost public information and education 

program dedicated to preventing highway-rail grade crossing crashes and 

pedestrian/railroad trespass incidents; and 

 

WHEREAS, annually in June and throughout the each all citizens are 

encouraged to observe added caution as motorists or pedestrians near highway-

rail crossings, railroad tracks and trains; and 

 
WHEREAS, this important observance leads to greater safety awareness 

and a reduction in highway-rail grade crossings crashes and pedestrian/railroad 

incidents; 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, CHARLES EMERY, CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, 
proclaim JUNE 2012, as: 
 
 

“RAIL SAFETY AWARENESS MONTH” 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the great 

seal of the Denton County Transportation Authority to be affixed this May 24th, in 

the year 2012. 

 
______________________ 

Charles Emery 
DCTA Board Chairman 

 
 
 

98




